
Safety and Licensing Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Council Chambers, 6th Floor5:30 PMWednesday, March 26, 2025

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

25-0284 Safety & Licensing Committee Minutes from 3/12/25

S&L Minutes 3.12.25.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

25-0298 Resolution #3-R-25 Truancy Ordinance

 

#3-R-25 Truancy Ordinance.pdfAttachments:

25-0257 Approve Sole Source Request-Axon Air/DroneSense in the amount of 

$42,322.16

Sole Source Request - Axon.docx

Axon Quote.pdf

PD - AxonAir.pdf

Attachments:

25-0282 Full Service Retail Outlet Request from Hammen Family Winery for sales at 

the 2025 Farner's Market

 

AB-105 Hammen Family Winery- Farm Market Application_Redacted.pdfAttachments:

25-0263 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

KayZa LLC d/b/a Tomaso's, Janelle Curlee, Agent, located at 115 E. 

Washington St Ste 106, contingent on approvals from the Health, 

Inspections, and Public Works departments

 

Tomasos.KayZa LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer Reserve Liquor.2.18.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 3/21/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25634
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cddbdd2d-aa7f-4d40-a44e-7bda6d0e4627.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25647
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2e758cc-9c12-41cb-9fff-9ff8453bcb35.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25607
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=249938f7-8a81-4f18-a35b-a8552c538625.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=755572c2-940b-4ca1-a3c0-4a6eb0ba7cd7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f7a3fbdc-2b17-4e78-a3c4-94bec1d7aed8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25632
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7a83192-e106-4a12-a1fb-f2ccef81f488.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25613
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=78c92d9a-ba97-42d0-ac90-bcb4d6c8caaa.pdf


March 26, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

25-0264 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Marvol LLC d/b/a Marvol, Adam Marty, Agent, located at 126 E. Pacific St, 

contingent on approvals from the Community Development, Health, and 

Inspections departments

 

Marvol LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer Reserve Liquor.2.10.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

25-0262 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Nusara Yang 

d/b/a Jai Sung Mah Pool Club, located at 122 W. Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent on approval from the Community Development, Inspections, and 

Public Works departments

 

Jai Sung Mah Pool Club.Alcohol.Class A_Beer_Liquor.2.10.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

25-0258 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent for 

Tandem Wine and Beer LLC d/b/a Tandem Wine and Beer, New Agent, 

Karter Thompson, located at 101 W. Edison Ave Ste 100

 

Tandem.Alcohol.COA.3.13.25.pdfAttachments:

25-0268 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License Change of Agent for Aldi Inc 

Wisconsin d/b/a Aldi #68, New Agent, Gregory Goodman, located at 116 

N. Linwood Ave, contingent on approval from the Police department

 

Aldi 68.Alcohol.COA.3.11.25.pdfAttachments:

25-0281 Class "B" Beer License Change of Agent for Playful Pursuits LLC d/b/a 

Appleton Axe, New Agent, Animesh Rana, located at 1400 W College Ave 

Ste B1

 

Appleton Axe.Alcohol.COA.3.19.25.pdfAttachments:

25-0259 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Permanent Premises 

Amendment application effective July 1, 2025 for Driftwood Special 

Servicing LLC d/b/a Appleton Hilton, Linda Garvey, Agent, located at 333 

W.College Ave, contingent on approvals from the Health, Inspections, 

Finance, and Public Works departments. 

Appleton Hilton.Driftwood Special Servicing LLC.Alcohol.PA_Perm.2.28.25.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 3/21/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25614
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0788e738-842c-4c4f-b827-156c71159c66.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25612
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e8ea71aa-0cf5-4fb9-bc1f-fd1dbd0b45c8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25608
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6c5e2bb-fcc4-4f41-836e-964a3f388121.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25618
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24a96674-636e-4d80-ace1-ff3c695a0130.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25631
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5bef35f9-cc8a-45a9-8a87-fb2031355b8f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25609
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c38bebe-4484-4229-8f69-49fcbe690403.pdf


March 26, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

25-0260 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Permanent 

Premises Amendment application for Good Company Ltd d/b/a Pullmans 

at Trolley Square LLC, Trevor Reader, Agent, located at 619 S. Olde 

Oneida St, contingent on approvals from the Health, Community 

Development, Finance, and Public Works departments

 

Pullmans at Trolley Square.Alcohol.PA_Perm.3.13.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

25-0261 Secondhand Article Dealer License renewal application for GameStop 

#5520, Mark Robinson, Applicant, located at 3825 E. Calumet St, 

contingent on approval from the Health department

 

GameStop.SecondhandPawn.3.14.25.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

25-0289 Police Department 2024 Annual Report

 

2024 APD Annual Report.pdfAttachments:

25-0283 Director's Report

1. City Clerk

    -Spring Election Reminders

2. Fire Chief 

3. Police Chief 

 

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 3/21/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25610
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=50683647-13c1-43b0-bab3-79554795a4cf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25611
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=006a1dc0-f00e-45d2-b9af-0d9ffd5cf7cf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25638
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1180835f-c89c-4d63-b42c-05b821da1b86.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25633


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Safety and Licensing Committee

5:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, March 12, 2025

Call meeting to order1.

Vice Chair Schultz called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Siebers, Doran, Fenton and SchultzPresent: 4 - 

CroattExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

25-0189 Safety & Licensing Committee Minutes 2/26/2025

S&L Minutes 02-26-25.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Siebers, Doran, Fenton and Schultz4 - 

Excused: Croatt1 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

25-0232 Commercial Solicitation Company License for Yanda Distribution LLC.

Yanda DIstribution LLC Company License.pdf

Yanda Dist LLC CS Denial Letter.pdf

City Sealer - YandaDenialMemo_03102025.pdf

Attachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Commercial Solicitation 

Company License be recommended for denial. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Siebers, Doran, Fenton and Schultz4 - 

Excused: Croatt1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25539
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=386d06ff-44ec-43e9-aadf-9ced362067a4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25582
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=81b1b471-a20f-47b6-a175-f64b88366ddb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=848965db-86bc-4d06-a8bf-97e96c598583.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31aacb5f-0f69-4b12-a9cf-9705bb46ab51.pdf


March 12, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0231 Commercial Solicitation License for Kagen Whiting.

Kagen Whiting Commercial Solicitation Application.pdf

Kagen Whiting CS Denial Letter .pdf

Kagen Whiting solicitation denial letter.pdf

Attachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Commercial Solicitation License 

be recommended for denial. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Siebers, Doran, Fenton and Schultz4 - 

Excused: Croatt1 - 

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Fenton moved, Siebers seconded, to approve the balance of the agenda. The 

motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Siebers, Doran, Fenton and Schultz4 - 

Excused: Croatt1 - 

25-0206 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Temporary Premises 

Amendment application for Sangria's Mexican Grill, Sarah Gregory, 

Agent, located at 215 S. Memorial Dr, on May 4, 2025 from 11:00 a.m. to 

8:00 p.m. for Cinco de Mayo block party special event, contingent upon 

approval from the Health and Inspections departments.

Sangrias Mexican Grill.Alcohol.PA_Temp.Cinco de Mayo.5.4.25.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0207 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Temporary Premises 

Amendment application for Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar, Sarah Gregory, 

Agent, located at 129 S. Memorial Dr, on May 4, 2025 from 11:00 a.m. to 

8:00 p.m. for Cinco de Mayo block party special event, contingent upon 

approval from the Police, Health, and Inspections departments.

Tipsy Taco,Alcohol.PA_Temp.Cinco de Mayo.5.4.25.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

25-0208 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application 

for All N One Smoke Vape Plus LLC d/b/a Smoke Shop, Atllah Mahmoud 

Abdelhadi, Agent, located at 2700 E. Calumet St.

Smoke Shop.All N One Smoke Vape Plus LLC.CTV.3.3.25.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25581
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4507ea87-465f-45dc-94c5-2a67752466ca.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b3244b40-01dc-4e48-b023-c7d88353a07a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d9523f8d-6685-4492-b115-1278cc4a4b55.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25556
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=daa43aaa-bbd0-4386-b452-668b94eceaea.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25557
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=906b6494-c88a-4953-97ff-9553821814aa.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25558
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=081acec2-dcf0-417f-acd0-cc1932c78a6b.pdf


March 12, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0205 Temporary Class "B" Beer License application for St. Thomas More 

Congregation, Barb Tremel, Person in Charge, located at 1810 N 

McDonald St, on April 4, 2025 and April 11, 2025 from 4:00 p.m. to 

10:00 p.m. for Lenten Fish Fry special events, contingent upon approval 

from the Health department.

St Thomas More Congregation.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer.Lenten Fish 

Fry.2.19.25.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval.

Information Items7.

25-0190 Director's Report

1. City Clerk

2. Fire Chief

3. Police Chief

Adjournment8.

Siebers moved, seconded by Fenton, that the meeting be adjourned at 5:34 

p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Siebers, Doran, Fenton and Schultz4 - 

Excused: Croatt1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25555
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=740cf39e-6a78-4544-a719-12a5143df1e6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25540


Resolution #3-R-25 
Truancy Ordinance 

Date: March 19, 2025 
Submitted By: Alderperson Siebers – District 1 
Referred To: Safety & Licensing Committee 

Summary: Reinstating Previous Truancy Ordinance – City of Appleton 

 

Whereas, under Wisconsin Statute 118.163, a city may enact an ordinance prohibiting a person 
under 18 years of age from being a habitual truant, 

Whereas, the percentage of Appleton Area School District high school students who annually 
qualify as “habitually truant” defined by the State of Wisconsin as missing all or part of 5 or 
more school days in a semester without an excuse, exceeds 40%, 

Whereas, the percentage of Appleton Area School District high school students who qualify as 
“chronically absent” as defined by the State of Wisconsin as having missed 10% or more of total 
school days, is approximately 25% (over 1,000 students), 

Whereas, 88% of Appleton Area School District high school students who are “habitually 
truant” and “chronically absent” are not on pace to graduate in four years, 

Whereas, the Appleton Area School District has over the past five years continually increased 
the support provided to students who struggle with habitual truancy and chronic absenteeism, 

Whereas, the Appleton Area School District has been unable to successfully support students 
who are struggling with consistent attendance without punitive measures, 

Whereas, a committee including Appleton Area School District staff, parents, and community 
members prioritized the creation of a truancy ordinance as the most critical action to support 
students who are struggling with consistent school attendance, 

Whereas, the Appleton Area School District has requested assistance from the City of Appleton 
to support students who are habitually truant, chronically absent, and not on-pace to graduate in 
four years, and, 

Therefore, be it resolved, that the City of Appleton enact an ordinance prohibiting a person 
under 18 years of age from being a habitual truant, and that this ordinance be for a trial period of 
four school semesters, starting in the fall of 2025, after which time, a review of the success of the 
ordinance will be made by the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, and AASD with suggested, 
needed and agreed on changes being made. 

 



 
 

TO: Safety and Licensing Committee 

From: Captain Gary Lewis and Lieutenant Blaine Vander Wielen 

Subject: Sole Source Request – Axon Air/DroneSense 

 

The Appleton Police Department (APD) Technology Unit operates a range of small 

unmanned aerial systems (sUAS) to enhance public safety and officer protection. To 

achieve the department's objectives while adhering to Federal Aviation Administration 

regulations, a specialized set of programs is necessary. 

Beginning in August 2024, APD initiated a trial of Axon Air/DroneSense. This company 

provides a comprehensive program tailored for first responder agencies, focusing on the 

management and operation of sUAS programs. Axon has partnered with DroneSense to 

enable seamless integration of sUAS with other Axon products, branded as Axon Air. As 

an agency utilizing various Axon products, this integration is unparalleled. 

Axon Air/DroneSense offers a range of features, including the ability to operate various 

sUAS both in-person and remotely, live streaming footage to officers and stakeholders, 

providing an operational map view of devices in use, ensuring deconfliction with 

manned aircraft, logging all flights for future reference, creating custom training 

programs, establishing a maintenance schedule, and managing equipment use and 

operator proficiency. While other programs may offer some of these features, Axon 

Air/DroneSense is the only comprehensive suite that encompasses all the essential 

functionalities for first responders, while also being compatible with our agency's 

existing products. 

I have not identified any comparable programs to seek alternative quotes. Therefore, I 

am submitting this memorandum to request that the Axon Air/DroneSense quote be 

considered a sole source request, given the program's unique aspects and its design 

continuity with current Axon products. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration.  

Captain Gary Lewis 

Lt. Blaine Vander Wielen 



Page 1 Q-668553-45709.797JD

Q-668553-45709.797JD

Issued: 02/21/2025

Quote Expiration: 02/28/2025

Estimated Contract Start Date: 03/15/2025

Account Number: 106590
Payment Terms: N30

Delivery Method: 

SHIP TO BILL TO SALES REPRESENTATIVE PRIMARY CONTACT

Appleton Police Department-WI
222 S Walnut St
Appleton,
WI
54911-5825
USA

 
Appleton Police Department - WI
222 S Walnut St
Appleton
WI
54911-5825
USA 
Email: 

David Arth
Phone: 

Email: darth@axon.com
Fax: 

Blaine Vander Wielen
Phone: 920-832-5500

Email: blaine.vanderwielen@appleton.org
Fax: (920) 832-6044

Quote Summary Discount Summary

Program Length 46.5484 Months Average Savings Per Year $0.00

TOTAL COST $42,322.16
ESTIMATED TOTAL W/ TAX $42,322.16 TOTAL SAVINGS $0.00

 

Axon Enterprise, Inc.
17800 N 85th St.
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
United States
VAT: 86-0741227
Domestic: (800) 978-2737
International: +1.800.978.2737



Page 2 Q-668553-45709.797JD

Payment Summary 
Date Subtotal Tax Total
Feb 2025 $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54
Feb 2026 $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54
Feb 2027 $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54
Feb 2028 $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54
Total $42,322.16 $0.00 $42,322.16



Page 3 Q-668553-45709.797JD

Quote Unbundled Price: $42,322.16
Quote List Price: $42,322.16
Quote Subtotal: $42,322.16

Pricing

All deliverables are detailed in Delivery Schedules section lower in proposal
Item Description Qty Term Unbundled  List Price Net Price Subtotal Tax Total
Program
CLASSMUAS AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 2 47 $116.67 $116.67 $116.67 $10,966.98 $0.00 $10,966.98
CLASS2UAS AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 1 47 $283.34 $283.34 $283.34 $13,316.98 $0.00 $13,316.98
A la Carte Software 
100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 47 $33.06 $33.06 $15,538.20 $0.00 $15,538.20
A la Carte Services 
12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
Total $42,322.16 $0.00 $42,322.16

Delivery Schedule

Software 
Bundle Item Description QTY Estimated Start Date Estimated End Date
AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 100580 AXON AIR - UAS LICENSE - CLASS 2 1 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 100584 AXON AIR - ADVANCED STREAMING ADD-ON 1 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 100586 AXON AIR - API INTEGRATIONS ADD-ON 1 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 100582 AXON AIR - UAS LICENSE - CLASS M 2 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 100584 AXON AIR - ADVANCED STREAMING ADD-ON 2 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 100586 AXON AIR - API INTEGRATIONS ADD-ON 2 03/15/2025 01/31/2029
A la Carte 100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 03/15/2025 01/31/2029

Services 
Bundle Item Description QTY
A la Carte 12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1



Page 4 Q-668553-45709.797JD

Shipping Locations

Location Number Street City State Zip Country

1 222 S Walnut St Appleton WI 54911-5825 USA

Payment Details

Feb 2025
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Year 1 100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 $3,884.56 $0.00 $3,884.56
Year 1 12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1 $625.00 $0.00 $625.00
Year 1 CLASS2UAS AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 1 $3,329.24 $0.00 $3,329.24
Year 1 CLASSMUAS AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 2 $2,741.74 $0.00 $2,741.74
Total $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54

Feb 2026
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Year 2 100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 $3,884.56 $0.00 $3,884.56
Year 2 12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1 $625.00 $0.00 $625.00
Year 2 CLASS2UAS AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 1 $3,329.24 $0.00 $3,329.24
Year 2 CLASSMUAS AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 2 $2,741.74 $0.00 $2,741.74
Total $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54

Feb 2027
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Year 3 100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 $3,884.56 $0.00 $3,884.56
Year 3 12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1 $625.00 $0.00 $625.00
Year 3 CLASS2UAS AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 1 $3,329.24 $0.00 $3,329.24
Year 3 CLASSMUAS AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 2 $2,741.74 $0.00 $2,741.74
Total $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54

Feb 2028
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Year 4 100112 AXON AIR - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE - PILOT DATA 10 $3,884.56 $0.00 $3,884.56
Year 4 12021 AXON AIR - VIRTUAL ONBOARDING 1 $625.00 $0.00 $625.00
Year 4 CLASS2UAS AXON AIR, CLASS 2 UAS BUNDLE 1 $3,329.24 $0.00 $3,329.24
Year 4 CLASSMUAS AXON AIR, CLASS M UAS BUNDLE 2 $2,741.74 $0.00 $2,741.74
Total $10,580.54 $0.00 $10,580.54

 



Page 5 Q-668553-45709.797JD

Tax is estimated based on rates applicable at date of quote and subject to change at time of invoicing. If a tax exemption certificate should be applied, please submit 
prior to invoicing. 

Standard Terms and Conditions

Axon Enterprise Inc. Sales Terms and Conditions

Axon Master Services and Purchasing Agreement:

This Quote is limited to and conditional upon your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon’s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement 
(posted at https://www.axon.com/sales-terms-and-conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work (SOW) for Axon Fleet and/or Axon Interview 
Room purchase, if applicable. In the event you and Axon have entered into a prior agreement to govern all future purchases, that agreement shall govern to 
the extent it includes the products and services being purchased and does not conflict with the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix 
as described below.

 ACEIP:

The Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix, which includes the sharing of de-identified segments of Agency Content with Axon to 
develop new products and improve your product experience (posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), is incorporated herein by 
reference. By signing below, you agree to the terms of the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program.

Acceptance of Terms:

Any purchase order issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By signing below, you represent that you 
are lawfully able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity (including but not limited to the company, municipality, or government agency 
for whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.



Page 6 Q-668553-45709.797JD

\s1\ \d1\
 Signature Date Signed

2/21/2025

 









3-12-2025



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





2024

ANNUAL
REPORT

For more information go to:
Appletonwi.gov



Polly Olson

A Letter From 
Chief Olson

The foundation of the Appleton Police Department is built on the trust given
to us by the members of our community. I’m excited to share our successes
from 2024, resulting in a safer community for those who live, work, and visit
the City of Appleton. Our team continues to focus on delivering excellence in
policing – with the additional goals of: increasing traffic safety efforts,
growing neighborhood watch programs and connections, and focusing on
nuisance properties and drug-related crime. Thank you for taking the time to
read about the great work happening within our community.

In 2024, Inspired by the City’s updates, our redesigned patch proudly 
features Appleton’s historic city seal, honoring our rich heritage and tradition

of excellence, while also reflecting our continued commitment to meeting
 the modern needs of our community and all those we serve with 

compassion, integrity, and courage.

Todd Freeman continues to serve
the Appleton Police Department as
Assistant Chief.



ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES UNIT

Reports Processed Supplements Processed Confinments Traffic / Ordinance Tickets Open Records Requests
0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Warnings.................................................
Offense reports written by PCS’s.....
Accident Reports Processed.............
Animal License Issued.........................
Other.......................................................

Our Administrative Services Unit is comprised of our Front Desk Unit as 
well as our Records Unit.

The APD front desk is staffed from 6:00am-10:00pm Monday through Friday
in which they handle all walk-in traffic and answer non-emergency phone
lines.

In 2024 there were 71,653 calls to our non-emergency line. 
Additional administrative tasks include processing community member
needs involving the following: 

7,192
127
1,855
2,775
59,704

Clerical Statistics for our Records Unit

FISCAL 
RESOURCES

The Fiscal Resource Unit manages all financial transactions pertaining to the
department budget and grant administration, ensuring funds are allocated
according to fiscal policies and procedures. With the retirement of two K9’s in
2024 the continued community support provided funding to purchase and
train two new K9’s (Quinn and Drakon). 

Grant funding through federal, state, and other agencies exceeded $300,000
providing funds for equipment, training, vest protection, traffic / drug
enforcement, and other department initiatives. The unit also provides
oversight of payroll administration, travel coordination, and other fiscal-
related activities. 

Cathy Allcox
Administrative Services Manager

SueAnn Teer
Fiscal Resources Manager



PATROL
UNIT

Number of Calls

Tra
�

c S
to

p

Susp
icio

us I
ncid

ent

W
elfa

re
 C

heck

Park
in

g E
nfo

rc
em

ent

Crim
e P

re
ventio

n

Vehicle
 A

ccid
ent

911 M
isd

ial

Dist
urb

ance

Ass
ist

 C
iti

ze
n o

r A
gency

Tra
�

c E
nfo

rc
em

ent
0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Ass
ault 

(S
im

ple
)

Ass
ault 

(A
ggra

vate
d)

Rape

Robbery

Burg
la

ry

Shoplif
tin

g

Theft 
fro

m
 M

oto
r V

ehicle

M
oto

r V
ehicle

 Theft

Dru
g N

arc
otic

s V
io

la
tio

ns

Dru
g E

quip
m

ent V
io

la
tio

ns
OW

I
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Top 10 Calls (by Nature Code)

Captain Jack Taschner
Northern / Southern Command

Blue Group

Captain Gary Lewis
Downtown Command / Ops Coordination

Red Group

Patrol is the first responding unit on all
calls for service. They are the backbone of

the department and the launching point
for all career paths at the APD. Our patrol

officers carry caseloads and have the
ability to see calls for service through to
the end. Yet, they also have the ability to

transfer the case to the appropriate
Investigative Services Unit (ISU, SRO, SIU,
CRU) to follow up on. Most Patrol officers

are also trained in crisis intervention. 

Serious Offenses Broken Down

Patrol is comprised of two groups (Red and Blue) who work alternating schedules comprised
of mostly 12 hour shifts. 
Each group has 30 patrol officers (when fully staffed), 6 Patrol Lieutenants, and 1 Captain. 
Each shift maintains minimums based on the time of day, per best practice.



INVESTIGATIVE
SERVICES UNIT

Captain Mike Wallace
Investigative & Community Resource Units

The Investigative Services Unit (ISU) is comprised of 10 detectives and
a dedicated unit Lieutenant. ISU members have specialized training
and years of experience working complex cases. They investigate major
felonies such as homicides, frauds, burglaries, and robberies.
Investigators work closely with patrol officers and forensic evidence
specialists to identify witnesses, preserve crime scenes, gather critical
information, and develop leads.

Major Incidents:
On 5/15/24 Investigators responded for a suspicious death investigation on E Summer St.
Two individuals were found deceased inside of their residence. The investigation determined
that one subject had died by suicide. The cause of death of the second individual was
undetermined.
On 7/18/24 Investigators responded for the homicide of Joseph Carnot. As a result of the
investigation Samantha Krebs was arrested for 1st degree intentional homicide. This case
remains in the court system. 
On 11/24/24 Investigators responded for the homicide of Daniel Juedes Sr. As a result of the
investigation Gregory Juedes was arrested for 1st degree intentional homicide. This case
remains in the court system.
Investigators spent significant time in preparation for 2 jury trials for homicide investigations
from previous years. Both defendants, Yia Lor and Eric Rogers, were found guilty of homicide
charges at trial.
ISU worked with SIU on an armed robbery investigation on S. Oneida St. The suspect in the
case was identified and, through collaboration with other agencies, arrested in Florida. 

Captain Mike Wallace oversees both the Investigative Services Unit and
Community Resource Unit. These unit are comprised of Investigative
Services, Special Investigations, School Resource Officers and
Community Resources.

Lt. Adam VanZeeland
Investigative Services



LAKE WINNEBAGO
AREA MEG UNIT

SIU continued their partnership with
the Lake Winnebago Metropolitan
Drug Unit, assigning one full time
Narcotics Investigator to the unit.
SIU investigators also created or

assisted LWAM regularly on narcotics
investigations in the City of Appleton

and greater Fox Valley area. 

SPECIAL
INVESTIGATIONS UNIT

Members of the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) worked in partnership
with the United States Marshals Service to apprehend many fugitives
whose crimes have impacted Appleton and Northeast Wisconsin. SIU
regularly provides assistance to patrol, Investigative Services Unit (ISU)
and sensitive crimes investigators in locating and arresting wanted
individuals. 

1kg Cocaine 3,591g of THC

116 Arrests

$30,960 Currency

501g of Fentanyl

137g of Heroin 377 Fentanyl Pills

4,204g of Meth

21 Seized Firearms

17 Search Warrants Served

2024 LWAM Drug Seizure Statistics:

Lt. Eric Holdorf
Special Investigations Unit In 2024 SIU was directly responsible for the seizure of:



0 5 10 15 20 25 30

ALICE

Truancy

Explorers

AODA

Drugs

Internet Safety

Basic Law Enforcement Q & A

2024 School Presentations

Our SRO Unit actively participated in 
260 events with the Appleton Area

School District. The events and activities
they participated in include: parades,

homecomings, sporting events, school
dances, color runs, roller skating, family

nights, etc.

The School Resource Officer Unit consists of a Lieutenant, 11 sworn officers
and one officer directly assigned to investigate Sex Offenses. 

This team successfully investigated many sensitive crimes involving
sexual assault and child abuse and neglect.

Together, the team closed over 20 cases of Internet Crimes Against
Children

Officer Hughes created a Sextortion Policy which has now been utilized
as a model policy throughout the state.

SCHOOL 
RESOURCE OFFICERS

NORTH Area
EAST Area

WEST Area

 :   80 events and activities
 :   95 events and activities
 :   85 events and activities

Lt. Adam Nagel
School Resource Unit



Mental Health Calls
375

Student Contacts with K9 Edison
200

Coordinated Entry Intakes
175

Diversions
160

Victims Supported
100

Presentations
75

Emergency Detentions
25Events

22

Overall
Numbers For

Team
Members

Our Threat Assessment Officer
was involved in some major cases
that resulted in individuals being
taken into custody prior to them
taking destructive action, likely
keeping many community
members safe.

COMMUNITY 
RESOURCE UNIT

The Community Resource Unit consists of: Victim Service Officer,
Community Liaison Officer, Behavioral Health Officer, Co-Responder Team,
Threat Assessment Officer, The Basic Needs Team, Community Engagement
Specialist and Public Information Officer.

The Basic Needs Team housed at the Appleton Police
Department, is comprised of Appleton Health Department
employees Liz Croley and Cheryl Schefe. They play a vital role in
connecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness
or hardship to resources in our community. Partnering with
local organizations, the team was expanded to include Cheryl in
2024. In just a year approximately 175 Coordinated Entry (CE)
intakes have been completed, helping those at risk of or
currently experiencing homelessness, not including children
and significant others. Beyond Coordinated Entry intakes, the
team has assisted individuals with accessing food, shelter,
housing, and employment resources. They have also established
strong partnerships within the community. One of the team's
key initiatives is the Interagency Collaboration meeting, which
brings together various local agencies to provide coordinated
support for those struggling to meet basic needs.

Liz

Cheryl

BASIC NEEDS
TEAM

Lt. Meghan Cash
Community Resource Unit



TECHNOLOGY
UNIT

The Appleton Police Department Technology Unit is comprised of 8 members
who are cross-trained to operate small unmanned aerial systems and the APD
robot. The APD Technology Unit operates on a near 24/7 coverage, and is
utilized in many situations to include: 

Search and rescue
Crime scene reconstruction
Suspect apprehension
Building clearing
In support of SWAT situations

The use of this equipment has aided with saving lives and increasing the safety
for officers and the public. 

OPERATIONS
UNIT

83 permitted
special events

38 additional
event days for
multi-day
special events

19 Saturday
Farmers
Markets

Special Events Tow Trucks O�-Duty Contracts Tra�c Grants

OWI
Speed
Pedestrian
Safety 

Totaling about
$217,000 in grant

funding.

Processed
and staffed 5
off-duty
security
contracts.

Yearly
contracts for
Contract Tow
Service 
Secondary
Contract Tow
Service
Abandoned
Autos
Oversight on
the tow
ordinance and
next-up tow
list
Processed and
addressed 3
violations of
the tow
ordinance and
completed 1
background
investigation. 

John is a member of the
Appleton Parade
Committee, the City of
Appleton Special Events
Committee, a
representative on the
Octoberfest and License
to Cruise Planning
Committee and has
processed contested
billing claims for false
alarm responses while
also participating in the
selection and interview
process for CSO
applicants.

Lt. Blaine VanderWielen
Technology Unit

Sgt. John Ostermeier
Operations Unit



Total Deployments (194) Detection Deployments (171) Total Arrests (59) Patrol Deployments (23)

ONYX EON

EDISON

ZUUL

Victim Services &
Community Resource

Narcotics Detection 
& Patrol

FARO

Narcotics Detection 
& Patrol

Explosives
Detection & Patrol

Narcotics Detection 
& Patrol

K9 Edison provided
direct support to
over 100 victims,
was deployed over
50 times to AASD
schools, with over
200 student
contacts and had
additional
deployments for
interviews, trial
preparation, trial
testimony,
community events,
and investigations.

Handler, Officer
Josh Rieth

Handler, Sgt. 
David Schneider

Handler, Sgt.
Tom Zieman

Handler, Sgt. 
Craig Rohm

Handler, Sgt.
Lori Duven

K9 UNIT

Lt. Ty West
K9 Unit

DRAKON QUINN

Narcotics Detection 
& Patrol

Explosives Detection 
& Patrol

Handler, Officer
Jack Doemel

Handler, Sgt.
Craig Rohm

KALEB

Narcotics Detection 
& Patrol

Handler, Officer
Jeremy Norris

Our K9 Team is comprised of a Lieutenant, four handlers and four K9s plus Sgt.
Duven and K9 Edison who is a Facility K9. Our K9s are purchased through
donations and grants; however, our explosives trained K9 was purchased by the
Green Bay Packers and in turn works the games, ensuring safety for all fans. Two
K-9s are assigned to Blue Shift while the other two are assigned to Red Shift yet,
this team trains, problem solves and sometimes deploys together. This unit also
supports the surrounding communities of Appleton as they get called to assist
other PD’s and Sheriff’s departments; they in turn, do the same for us.

In 2024, we lost K-9 Faro due to kidney failure and saw the retirement of K-9 Eon
and K-9 Zuul.

ACTIVE for 2025



S.W.A.T.

Each SWAT member has passed a rigorous tryout to 
be part of this team. After being selected, the training 
continues and includes 140 hours of team training 
and 24 hours each of additional individual training 
per year. 

The types of calls SWAT is deployed, or called out for, are: armed barricaded subjects, hostage rescue
operations, high risk warrant service, or other situations where the tactical abilities and / or knowledge
of the team or specific members would be beneficial for the department or community.  

During the 2024 year, SWAT was called in for 2 full team activations.
SWAT members participated in 36 fugitive apprehension / warrant service operations to include two
other agency requests for APD SWAT services. 

The SWAT team is not only deployed for active events but also as safety precautions. We had SWAT
deployments at 11 special events in Appleton. APD SWAT Sniper / Observer team also assisted with a
week long deployment at the Republican National Convention in Milwaukee.

The SWAT Team also  participated in 3 Community engagement events: Tough Kid Challenge, Touch a
truck, and Explorers. 

Our SWAT (Special Weapons and Tactics) team plays a crucial role in
keeping the community safe. This team team is comprised of 24 individuals.
Most individuals are part of the Appleton Police Department, however, we
have 4 TEMS (Tactical Emergency Medial Support) medics who are all part
of the Appleton Fire Department. 

1 Commander 1 Assistant Comma…

2 Team Leaders

2 Assistant Team Leaders

1 Sniper Team Leader

4 Snipers (Cross Trained in Entry)

9 Additional Entry Members

4 TEMS Medics

1 Logistics O�cer

24 Team Members

Lt. Bill McCormick
S.W.A.T Team Commander



COMMUNITY 
SERVICE OFFICERS

2024 CSO Calls for Service

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

Abandoned Vehicle
Accident

Accident Parking Lot
Administrative

Animal Bite
Animal Call

Assist
Bike Stop

Crime Prevention
School Safety

Down Wire
Gas Leak

Gra�ti
Hazard

Vehicle Lock-Out
Lost/Found Property

Water Problem
Ordinance

Parking
Fire

Suspicious Incident
Suspicious Vehicle

Motorist Assist

Our Community Service Officer (CSO) Team is overseen by a Lead CSO and
comprised of, up to 14 (when fully staffed) CSO’s. This unit is heavily relied
upon by Patrol as they assist in a wide variety of services as listed below.

Matt Fillebrown
Lead CSO



August (20) June (19)

January (18)

February (18)

March (18)

November…

December (14)

April (12)

May (10)

July 10)

September (9)

October (9)

TRAFFIC 
SAFETY UNIT

Tra�c Stops (829)
40.7%

Tra�c Citations (589)
28.9%

Warnings (284)
13.9%

Tra�c Safety Screens (209)
10.3%

Accidents (86)
4.2%

OWI (24)
1.2%

City Summons (16)
0.8%

In total, we had 182 Ride Alongs in 2024

Our Ride-Along program takes place all year
round. Our officers willingly take civilians any

day and time that works for the requesting
party. This has been a great way to involve the

community in what we do. Individuals who
have taken part in the program range from:

family members, volunteers, those interested
in the field, media personnel, business owners,
Chaplains, Alderpersons, County Workers, etc.

RIDE ALONG
PROGRAM

Check out our website to take part:
appletonwi.gov/police/get_involved

Individuals must be 17+ or a high school senior

Lt. Bill McCormick

Officer Ryan McCord



USE OF FORCE
During 2024, officers from the Appleton Police Department used a level of force that met the reporting

requirements during a total of 65 calls for service involving 67 total people. As in previous years,
passive countermeasures accounted for the majority of techniques used by officers to affect an arrest.

The most common use of force utilized by officers were decentralizations. This involves bringing a
resisting subject to the ground for a more stable and secure handcuffing position. Appleton officers

decentralized 53 of the 67 individuals. Appleton officers also used an ECD (TASER) deployment to assist
in detaining or arresting 7 individuals (down 10 from the previous year). There was one use of deadly

force. These uses of force occurred during a variety of days, times, and locations. As a direct result of
the uses of force there were 18 officers with injuries either visible or claimed. 

  Types of Force Used on Individuals
  

       2020    2021    2022    2023   2024   5-Year Avg

  ECD Deployments    11    16    14    17    7    13.0  

       Effective    7    12    11    13    5    9.6  

       Effective %    63.64%    75.00%    72.73%    76.47%    71.43%    71.85%  

       Non-Effective    4    4    3    4    2    3.4  

  OC Spray    0    0    0    0    0    0  

  Decentralization    56    49    52    68    53    55.6  

  Vertical/Ground Stuns    3    2    2    1    1    1.8  

  Hand Strikes    5    3    11    5    8    6.4  

  Elbow Strikes    0    3    2    0    0    1.0  

  Leg Kicks    0    0    0    0    0    0  

  Knee Strikes    8    3    1    3    1    3.2  

  Baton Strikes    0    0    0    0    0    0  

  Canine Bites    1    0    1    2    1    1.0  

  Incapacitating Techniques    0    0    0    0    0    0  

  Deadly Force    0    0    1    1    1    0.6  



VOLUNTEERS

SOCIAL
MEDIA REACH

Our volunteers continue to support the Appleton Police Department on a
daily basis. We wouldn’t be the same without their help. They assist with:

58,560
Followers

214
Subscribers

1,036
Followers

3,167
Followers

Transcribing old documents
Gathering and logging APD history
Holding museum events
Shredding documents
Collecting pop tabs

Assisting with community events
Folding brochures
Playing McGruff the CRIME dog
Giving tours
And so much more!

Nicky Rowan
Volunteer Coordinator


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_SL Minutes 3.12.25
	0002_1_3-R-25 Truancy Ordinance
	0003_1_Sole Source Request - Axon
	0003_2_Axon Quote
	0003_3_PD - AxonAir
	0004_1_AB-105 Hammen Family Winery- Farm Market Application_Redacted
	FSRT Hammen Winery- Famer's Market 2025
	DOC009
	DOC010

	0005_1_Tomasos.KayZa LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer Reserve Liquor.2.18.25.REDACTED
	0006_1_Marvol LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer Reserve Liquor.2.10.25.REDACTED
	0007_1_Jai Sung Mah Pool Club.Alcohol.Class A_Beer_Liquor.2.10.25.REDACTED
	0008_1_Tandem.Alcohol.COA.3.13.25
	0009_1_Aldi 68.Alcohol.COA.3.11.25
	0010_1_Appleton Axe.Alcohol.COA.3.19.25
	0011_1_Appleton Hilton.Driftwood Special Servicing LLC.Alcohol.PA_Perm.2.28.25
	0012_1_Pullmans at Trolley Square.Alcohol.PA_Perm.3.13.25.REDACTED
	0013_1_GameStop.SecondhandPawn.3.14.25
	0014_1_2024 APD Annual Report



